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3-00 PM. 

The House reassembled after lunch at four 
minutes past three of the clock, the Vice 
Chairman (Shri Shankar Dayal Singh) in the 
Chair 

CALLING ATTENTION TO A MATTER 
OF URGENT PUBLIC 

IMPORTANCE 

Sttnation arising out of large-scale 
disinvestment in public sector 

undertakings—Contd. 

PROF. SAURIN BHATTACHARYA: 
Thank you, Mr. Vice-Chairman, for having 
called my name. 

What we have been discussing is, perhaps, 
basically something economic or industrial. 
Even though the Finance Minister comes to us 
with a final decision, perhaps from the CCPA, 
meaning it is, at the same time, a political 
decision, may be beginning from the then 
Finance Minister, Mr. Yashwant Sinha, but 
ultimately taken on his shoulders by the 
present Finance Minister, with all the added 
implications. The question is, what has been 
the intention of this disinvestment? It has been 
said, 'Tor greater public participation" but, at 
the same time, allegations have been hurled 
how speculators utilized this disinvestment 
process to secure dishonest benefits out of it It 
was said so in the Calcutta stock market 
Perhaps the question which arises both from 
the securities scam and this disinvestment 
process is, why are share-brokers essential for 
the purpose of selling shares ? It has been an 
inseparable part of our economic system, from 
the British days, but the baneful effect the way 
it is utilized for securing undue profit or 
undue advantages or undue hold on the 
industry is, I think, a long story. 

Why can't the industries themselves do it ? 
Here, the question of bundling or basketing 
has been raised. "Very good, good and 
average" have been bundled together, in 
bundles of 9,10 or IS, instead of doing it 
individually, in which case it has been argued 
that only the "very good" may be selected out 
and "good and average'' would go a begging. 
And in the case of "very good" also, the prices 
would not be commensurate with its intrinsic 
worth. In such cases, even these baskets or 
groups can arrange their sale process 
themselves instead of being a prey to 
dishonest stock-brokers as You can see it in 
the securities scam. 

Harshad Mehta has been responsible for 
much ups and downs in our politics in recent 
times. The likes of Harshad Mehta have not 
been absent in our economic field for long. 

Rather, they have, one way or the other, been 
dominating. Though it is assessed that the 
securities scam would account for Rs. 5,000 
crores, the fact remains that the real amount 
involved is much higher. That amount might 
not have been misappropriated directly, but 
the stretch of this manipulative practice on the 
part of the share market is over a large portion 
of our economy, which will run into Rs. 
2,00,000 crores. When this is the role of the 
share brokers, of the share market is it 
essential, is it inescapable, that we should put 
our economy in the hands of these dishonest 
manipulators, these economic sharks ? That 
question arises in this case also. 

But there is another aspect, and that is 
regarding the acknowledged policy and 
sometimes not-so-acknowledged policy of the 
present Government regarding doing away 
with these public sector undertakings. I do not 
think the public sector undertakings will usher 
in socialism in anyway either according to the 
formulations of Pandit Jawaharlal Nehru or 
according to the formulations of Dr. Man-
mohan Singh, but the public sector under-
takings covered those grounds which have 
rather delayed returns on large investments as 
they could not be undertaken by the public 
capital. PSU practically served the purpose of 
establishing key industries or basic industries 
which have practically been built up at the 
cost of the public exchequer. It was not with 
the help of the private capital because it was 
eager to get quick returns and not a long-term 
investment with profit prospects long drawn. 
That way they would not invest their money. 
It has been said by disinvestment you are 
expected to strengthen the economy. 
Disinvested money was sold only to financial 
institutions, mutual funds and other things, but 
the fact is that the disinvested money did not 
go to that channel. Ultimately the shares 
which were sold out the Government is not 
able to trace their whereabouts. In whose 
hands have they accumulated ? I recently put a 
question. It was replied to by the Industries 
Minister. In that the total amount of disin-
vestments had been replied to. Another ques-
tion was whether private or foreign capital 
took advantage of this disinvestment. The 
reply has been that out of the total only an 
insignificant amount of 0.25 lakhs of shares 
went to private hands. Foreign hand was 
totally omitted from the main reply. Anyway 
what has been revealed from the discussion 
today is perhaps not the whole truth. It is the 
formal truth. The real truth would be that the 
stock brockers and the manipulators cornered 
the shares and then 
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only these shares were transferred to private 
hands. My apprehension is whatever might be 
the genesis of these undertakings, the fact 
remains... 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI 
SHANKAR DAYAL SINGH): Now you put 
question. 

PROF. SAURIN BHATTACHARYA: I 
have already put the question. I am sure the 
question out of this will be met by the 
Finance Minister in the sense whether 
disinvestment really served the purpose it was 
expected to serve; whether the financial 
institutions, the mutual funds etc. really 
secured the benefit. The question is the PSUs 
served one purpose. A large segment which 
used to be called earlier the commanding 
heights of the economy was under the PSUs. 
After the disinvestment policy whether the 
commanding heights of the economy have 
been razed to the ground or not, I think that is 
the fourth point. Together with that the 
question remains whether this disinvestment 
which comes in slow degrees is really a 
device to demolish the ground, under the 
public sector system or whether it has some 
other motive. In between I put another 
question. Of course, I am not an economist. 
But it is my common sense point of view : 
How essential is the share market for our 
economy ? The history of the share market 
has been that it has been manipulating our 
economy and against the interest of the 
economy of the coutry or whatever it is. It 
may not be a socialist economy. It is a 
capitalist economy. But even that economy, 
its ownership, its administration, everything is 
sought to be diluted by these share operators, 
these share exchange manipulators. I do not 
know whether it is essential that this system 
should continue. It has been responsible for 
the securities scam, for attacking the entire 
economy. I do not know whether this machi-
nery should be allowed to continue in our 
economy. Thank you. 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI (Karnataka) 
Mr. Vice-Chairman, Sir, we are discussing a 
matter which perhaps constitutes the most 
complex and the most sophisticated white-
collar crime in the history of this country. 
Somebody compared it with Bofors, a 
hundred Bofors will not compare with this. 
The CAG valued the shares disposed of for 
Rs. 3000 crores at Rs. 8000 crores. I think he 
was grievously wrong. By his own methods 
of calculation he might be right. 3ut I charge 
that we are not dealing with Rs. 8000 crores 
pointed out by the CAG. We are not 

dealing with Rs. 12,000 crores which is 
pointed by Meryl Lynch, a very respectful 
financial company abroad. But we are dealing 
with, in my humble calculation, a sum which 
is in the neighbourhood of about Rs. 50,000 
crores. I would, therefore, ask the first these 
shares had been directly sold to the public in 
the the month of March. 1992 at the 
prevailing market rates— is it or is it not true 
that the shares would have feached something 
like Rs. 54,000 crores, a mind-boggling 
figure. Sir, I see the constraint of time from 
which you suffer. But considering the 
enormous nature of this very complicated 
crime, your rules of procedure will give way 
to a fair and accurate search for truth. I can 
understand the lack of interest of the Treasury 
Benches. They do not want to open up this 
"can of worms". It is "a can of worms", 
believe me. Sir. But I also regret that I 
expected much more intrest in this affair 
being taken because Rs. 50,000 crores of 
people's money is involved in this. 

Sir, the Finance Minister says in his state-
ment that the object of this whole transaction 
or series of transactions was to cover up the 
Budget deficit. The Budget deficit, if I 
remember the figure right, is about Rs. 
11,000 crores in the last Budget If the shares 
had been disposed of in March, 1992 at the 
market rate, not only would our entire deficit 
have been wiped out but we would have still 
probably Rs. 40,000 crores more in the 
Government's kitty. Where did this Rs. 
40,000 crores go, where did this money go ? 

Sir, there was no urgency for the disposal 
of these shares. They were disposed of in two 
lots. The first lot was disposed of in 
December, 1991, and the second lot was 
disposed of in February, 1992. Do I 
understand that these gentlemen who receive 
pulic salaries, these gentlemen who enjoy the 
perks of office, were not looking at the 
market rate, that they were not looking at the 
stock exchange prices ? If they had looked at 
them, and they must have looked at them, it 
would be childish of us, it will be foolish of 
us to believe, and it will be foolish of anyone 
else to tell us to believe this story, that they 
did not know that the market price of such 
shares would be a hundred times more than 
the price at which you disposed of those 
assets. Why did you not wait ? Sir, the answer 
given by Mr. Manmohan Singh is an answer 
which treats us like retarded children. He 
thinks that we do not understand these things 
at all and that he will get away with any kind 
of assertion that he makes. 
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Sir, let me- make one thing clear. I have the 
greatest affection for the hon. Finance 
Minister. Only on the 4th of August—today it 
is 12th— eight days ago, speaking in Bombay 
to a crowd of intellectuals gathered there, on 
the murky political scene in this country, I 
made a statement which, I am sure, must have 
come to the notice of the Finance Minister. I 
said that in this murky political scenario of 
today there was one way of hope and that was 
our incorruptible Finance Minister. I paid him 
this compliment on the 4th of August. I am 
not sure whether I would have paid this 
compliment to him if I had read the statement 
which he had placed on the floor of this 
House within 48 hours there-after, on the 5th 
of August. Sir, I had a hope, a hope which has 
been belied. I regret to say thai it has been 
belied. It is a matter of personal distress to 
me. I thought that the Finance Minister would 
change the system which he was called upon 
to do, but it seems to me that he is not 
changing the system but that the system is 
beginning to change him already. Something 
is wrong. 

Sir, the Finance Minister, in paragraph 3 of 
his statement on page 3, knows where the can 
of worms lies. He is too intelligent a man not 
to unerstand this. He understands this. 
Therefore, his moral and political 
responsibility is much greater than that of 
other ignominious who get away with an 
excuse of ignorance and lack of knowledge. 
This is what you say in paragraph 3, and that 
will be the foundation of my second question 
to you. You have said in paragraph 3: 

There have also been allegations that 
certain financial institutions committed 
irregularities in collusion with brokers, 
which led to improper gains accruing to 
brokers. These are being looked into." 

[f the main allegation is still being looked 
into, in the official jargon, when you say that 
you are looking into something, it means that 
you have effectively buried it and that you are 
now only taking further steps to see that it 
never revives again. When the matter was 
being enquired into and conclusions have not 
been reached, how is it that in the opening 
paragraphs 1 and 2 yon gave a gratuitous 
certificate to your whole Government ? You 
say: 

" __ I believe that Government's bona. 

fides in this matter are above reproach. 

The decision to restrict within, to the 
public; 

sector mutual funds, banks and financial 
institutions and even the decision to bundle 
shares was, according to his certificate, a 
bona fide decision. I want to ask this. This is 
the first sub-part of my second question. If it 
now turns out that these inquiries which are 
not yet complete, which are still being held-
by whom, he does not tell us; when they 
started, he does not tell us: what are the prima 
facie conclusions arrived at, he does not tell 
us-are honest, assuming that these inquiries 
are held by an honest agency, it proves the 
following facts. Fact No. 1 is that the two-tier 
stage of sale was a device by which the 
mutual funds and the financial institutions 
should make only a token profit and the huge 
profits on resale should be shared by bank 
officials and brokers in the market (Time-
bell). I am sorry, Sir. I do not mind borrowing 
some little time from other hon. Members. 
This is a matter of the greatest importance. 

Fact No. 2 is this. If it is established that 
the shares were bundled to make it difficult 
tc calculate the value of the basket and 
conceal the real object of selling them at a 
low value. Faci No. 3 is that the brokers 
involved were those who had advanced 
monies to those companien in which the 
Prime Minister's son is interested Fact No. 4 
is that the Committee that was set ui and the 
Committee that has been set up i: almost the 
first Prime Ministerial act of thi Prime 
Minister. The Committee was set up, think, 
in the month of June, 1991. Who are thi 
persons who are put on this Committee, the 
per sonnel at the active core of this 
Committee, t most important. You have first 
the Prime Minis ter's Private Secretary, his 
blue-eyed boy. Mi Verma. Then you have his 
brother-in-law, Mi Suresh Kumar. Third, you 
have Mr. Montel Singh Ahluwalia. 
(Interruptions). 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY (Pon 
dicherry): Are they not incompetent? 

MISS SAROJ KHAPARDE 
(Maharashtra) Mr.    Montek    Singh    
Ahluwalia    is    nt 

.... (Interruptions). 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY: Are they 

no competent, Mr. Jethmalani ? 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: Did I say an 
thing of that kind ? Please sit down and 
listen will tell you what they are. 
(Interruptions). 
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SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: I will tell you 
what it is all about. {Interruptions). 

 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI 
SHANKAR DAYAL SINGH) : You are also 
going to speak on this, Mr. Narayanasamy. 
(Interruptions). 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: Why dont you 
ask the Prime Minister to come and sit here 
instead of speaking through agents? 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY: Mr. 
Jethmalani, you are also an agent of a party. 
Janata Dal. (Interruptions) 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI 
SHANKAR DAYAL SINGH): Mr. 
Narayanasamy, your name is also there. 
(Interruptions). I would now request the hon. 
Member to conclude. 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI : If the probe 
which is said to be continuing were to 
establish these facts, I am asking the Finance 
Minister, will he or will he not confess to this 
House that the certificate of good character 
that he has gratuitously issued to this 
Government will be a misleading certificate, 
will be a wrong certificate? I do not want to 
use the word 'false because it is a harsh word 
to use for a friend on whom I have great hope 
and I have not yet lost the last hope that I 
have. Sir, we talk of the Committee members. 
Will the hon. Finance Minister tell us whether 
the close relatives of two of the members of 
this Committee who have been the most 
active members of this Committee— one's 
wife and another's daughter—are related to 
the companies which are involved in the 
purchase of these very shares ? Will you or 
will you not ? Will you please tell me this ? 
Was it not a guideline laid down that these 
shares would not be resold until they were 
listed on the stock exchange ? 

Your statement, which is a masterpiece of 
obfuscation, does mention this in paragraph 
13 but mentions it in a manner which is 
calculated to create confusion and to mislead 
this House. If the guideline which was laid 
down was obeyed, the shares could not have 
been sold in the month of December 1991 and 
they would 

not have been sold in the month of February 
1992. If the shares were listed and then sold, 
the shares could only have been sold in March 
1992 and at that time, they would have 
realised Rs. 54,000 crores. Answer these 
inconvenient questions. What do you say? 
What is your explanation in paragraph 30? 
Paragraph 30 canceals the whole fraud. What 
you say is that it is permissible under the law 
to sell shares outside the stock market. Yes, 
Mr. Finance Minister, it is permissible to sell 
shares outside the stock market. But when you 
sell outside the stock market ihey have got to 
be on spot delivery contract and there cannot 
possibly be forward sales. Mr. Finance 
Minister, you know the law more than 
anybody else. Do you deny that these shares, 
which took place in the month of December 
1991 and February 1992, the delivery of these 
shares was given as late as June 1992, and, 
therefore, they were not spot sales? Whoever 
authorised these sales, committed a breach of 
the Securities Act, which you have quoted and 
they are liable to be punished as criminal 
offenders. Sir. 1 charge that there has been a 
conspiracy which has come into existence for 
the purpose of cheating the public 
exchequer—a conspiracy to which 
bureaucrats are parties, to which politicians 
are parties and Sir, on the available evidence, 
Mr. Kamal Morarka was right     .   
(Interruptions). 

SHRI       VITHAIRAO       
MADHAVRAO 

JADHAV (Maharashtra) • Mr. Jethmalani, 
you are also one of the parties to Mr. Harshad 
Mehta. (Interruptions) 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: I have not 
purchased these shares. (Interruptions) 

SHRI VITHALRAO MADHAVRAO 
JADHAV: You are putting the allegations 
from the side of Mr. Harshad Mehta. 
(Interruptions) You want to save the greatest 
offender. (Interruptions) Sir, he has no moral 
right to speak in this House. (Interruptions) 

SI IRI KAMAL MORARKA: Sir, if these 
are the rules, then the entire Congress Party 
should get out of the House. (Interruptions) 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: Sir, in my 
whole political life, I have not seen such an 
insensitive and shameless Government. 
(Interruptions) 

SHRI KAMAL MORARKA: How can he 
say that he has no moral right to speak in the 
House? Mr. Jadhav should not talk like this. 
(Interruptions) He has all the right to speak in 
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the House. (Interruptions) Let him withdraw 
his words. Are you teaching morality to us? * 
* * * and you are talking of morality. 
(Interruptions) Don't talk of morality to Ram 
Jethmalani. (Interruptions) 

SHRI M. A BABY (Kerala): Sir, I am on a 
point of order. (Interruptions) 

SHRI V.NARAYANASAMY: Mr. 
Morarka, it is not possible for you. You have 
got only two Members in Lok Sabha. 
(Interruptions) 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY: * 

SHRI KAMAL MORARKA: * 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY: * 

SHRI KAMAL MORARKA: * 

SHRI MA BABY: • 

 
What is this going on ? Without my 
permission it will not go on record. I am 
permitting Mr. Baby only. 

SHRI     VITHALRAO     
MADHAVRAO JADHAV: * 

MISS SAROJ KHAPARDE :* 

SHRI KAILASH NARAIN SARANG: * 

SHRI KAMAL MORARKA: * 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI 
SHANKAR DAYAL SINGH): I have 
allowed Mr. Baby to speak. 

SHRI M. A. BABY: Thank you very much, 
Sir, for bringing the House to order. 
__ (Interruptions) 

SHRI KAILASH NARAIN SARANG : * 

SHRI     VITHALRAO     
MADHAVRAO JADHAV: • 

SHRI RAFIQUE ALAM: * 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI 
SHANKAR DAYAL SINGH): Please take 
your seats. I 

have allowed Mr. Baby only. 

 

SHRI KAILASH NARAIN SARANG : ♦ 

SHRI M. A BABY: Sir, due to obvious 
reasons we know in our House at times there 
used to be sound and fury but at the same 
time all ot us should realise—whether we sit 
on this side or on the other side of the 
House—that not only that we perform but we 
are being watched also. So, Sir, my only 
submission is that we should try to conduct 
ourselves according to the rules and the 
procedure which have been laid down. Here, 
in the course of an intervention being made 
by my hon. colleague, Shri Rare Jethmalani, 
an hon. Member from the othei side said that 
Shri Ram Jethmalani is no morally... 
(interruption)... 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI 
SHANKAJ DAYAL SINGH): No, no; I am 
not going to allow you for a discussion. 

SHRI M. A. BABY: Sir, please listen to 
me. i am winding up within a minute,... 
(Interrup tions)... 

 

* Expunged as ordered by the Chair. * Not recorded. 

 

SHRI KAILASH NARAIN SARANG : 

SHRI       VITHALRAO       
MADHAVRAO JADHAV: • 

SHRI KAILASH NARAIN SARANG : 

MISS SAROJ KHAPARDE: 
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THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI 
SHANKAR DAYAL SINGH): If you are on 
the point of order, kindly tell me what your 
point of order is. 

SHRI M. A BABY: An hon. Member has 
questioned ......  

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI 
SHANKAR DAYAL SINGH): I have not 
allowed you to make a speech, but to raise a 
point of order. 

SHRI VITHALRAO MADHAVRAO 
JADHAV: It is my privilege to raise a point 
of order. 

 
 

SHRI M. A BABY: Let me complete. The 
right of an hon. Member to be present in this 
Houseas a Member is being questioned by an 
hon. Member from that side and my friend, 
Shri Kamal Morarka, also said that all those 
who sit on that side of the House are also not 
eligible to sit there. My submission is that this 
kind of remarks should not find ... 

SHRI VITHALRAO MADHAVRAO 
JADHAV: Sir, I am on a point of order. 

SHRI M. A BABY: ... a place in the records 
and we should restrain from making such 
observations. You please give your ruling. 

SHRI VITHALRAO MADHAVRAO 
JADHAV: I am on a point of order. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI 
SHANKAR DAYAL SINGH) : No. I am not 
allowing any point of order. Please take your 
seat Jadhavji. 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: Give a reply 
instead of creating this noise. 

 

SHRI VITHALRAO MADHAVRAO 
JADHAV: This discussion which is going on 
is about the disinvestment of the public sector 
undertakings. But from where have this 
Harshad Mehta and all these things come? 
(Interruptions)... 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: Who brought 
Mr. Harshad Mehta ? (Interruptions)... 

SHRI VITHALRAO MADHAVRAO 
JADHAV: I am on a point of order. Sir, My 
point of order is that this discussion should be 
restricted to the subject only. It should not go 
beyond the subject and whatever ... (Inter-
ruptions) .'.. 

SHRI VITHALRAO MADHAVRAO 
JADHAV: This is a very important point of 
order. 

 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: Sir, in 
paragraph 30 of the statement the hon. Finance 
Minister admits that only spot sales are per-
missible outside the stock exchange. Once you 
mention this statement of the law, why didn't 
you also were no spot sales at all ? Why 
did.you conceal this fact from the House ? Are 
you now willing to admit to this House that the 
sales were not spot sales but they were future 
delivery contracts and the delivery had been 
given for the first time in the month of June, 
1992 when the contracts had come into 
existence earlier and the breach of the lawnad 
taken place ? Who is responsible for them ? I 
want an assurance that  

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: I will take 
five minutes, Sir. 

SHRI       VITHALRAO       
MADHAVRAO JADHAV: Sir, listen to my 
point of order. 



251     Calling attention to a matter   [RAJYA SABHA]        of Urgent Public Importance    252 

those who committed the breach of the 
Securities Act are going to be prosecuted and 
punished according to the law of this country. 

Sir, two more questions arise immediately 
now. You had a reserve bid. I never heard of a 
reserve bid which is kept concealed in the po-
cket of the person who wants to auction his 
property. Why didn't you convey this to the 
bidders? Why did't you tell the bidders, 
"According to us, this is the least value of our 
property and we are not prepared to entertain 
any offer below that."? Your statement reads 
like a stinking falsehood. You are insulting 
our common sense. The insult to the common 
sense is that we realised that the bids may not 
come up to the level of the reserve bid that we 
have in our mind and, therefore, we decided 
not to disclose the reserve to others. All right. 
Disclose the reserve bid to them and if you 
don't get bids which are in conformity with 
the reserve bid, then think, about your 
position. But why have you, in advance, 
concealed the reserve bid itself people in this 
country would have risen up and told you that 
this reserve bid itself is a fraud, the value of 
this here is hundred times or thousand times 
more than your reserve bid and we are 
prepared to give you hundred times the value 
of your reserve bid. But you wanted to avoid 
that unseemly ... {Interruptions)... 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI 
SHANKAR DAYAL SINGH): Mr. 
Viduthalai Virumbi (Interruptions) ... Mr. 
Virumbi. 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: Then, Sir, the 
statement says that they discovered that they 
were not getting offers, they were not getting 
offers which came up to the reserve bid. Once 
that happened, why did you not then look 
around ? Because your two declared 
objectives, which you still stand by, are that 
you wanted to cover up your deficit of Rs. 
10,000 crores in the Budget and you wanted 
better equity participation. 

If you wanted greater equity participation, 
why did you make it a family affair between 
your financial institutions and your banks? 
Why did you not go out to the open public ? 
Why did you not give a chance to every 
citizen in this country to bid or to give you 
proper value of the share ? The very fact that 
you concealed everything from the people of 
this country shows that you had something up 
your sleeve. What is up your sleeve is to 
ultimately pocket the difference. Why did you 
not sell it directly to the people ? Why was 
this two-tier sale, i.e. sale 

to the banks and the financial institutions and 
then allow them to sell to the public ? Why 
did you not sell it directly to the public ? Then 
the public would have told you that this is the 
real value of the shares. Sir, this is the 
question which I nowwish to ask. The 
Parliament met in December. This matter was 
on the agenda before the Parliament The 
Parliament was supposed to discuss it. If this 
matter had been discussed in Parliament, 
people like Kamal Morarka or people in the 
Lower House, distinguished Members, would 
have pointed out that this was the biggest 
fraud on the exchequer of this country, this 
reserve price is a fraud and that the people of 
this country must be allowed to complete. It 
has been laid down again and again by our 
courts that when you deal with public property 
and the disposal of public property, you must 
not only be honest but you must seem to be 
honest and you cannot dispose of public 
property except in the open with the greatest 
possible publicity so that everybody has an 
opportunity to come and bid before you and to 
give you the proper value. Sir, the Parliament 
had this matter on its agenda. Yet the Prime 
Minister of this country was persuaded. He 
was persuaded or he persuaded himself, I don't 
know. I will still give him the benefit of 
doubt. He put his signature upon the 
permission that this sale should take place and 
the matter need not be discussed in the 
Parliament. I charge the Prime Minister with 
the gravest dereliction of duty and his 
accountability to the Parliament that he 
sanctioned it. (Interruptions). 

SHRI V.NARAYANASAMY: Sir, I am on 
a point of order. ... (Interruptions)... 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: Call him here. 
Let him answer this question. Why did he 
allow the Parliament of this country to be by-
passed ? ... (Interruptions)... 

SHRI V.NARAYANASAMY: 
Howperverse is he towards the Prime 
Minister. ... (Interruptions) ... 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI 
SHANKAR DAYAL SINGH): Mr. Virumbi, 
I have called your name. Mr. Virumbi, please 
start. ... (Interruptions)... How can I give him 
more time 1 ... (Interruptions)... 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: Sir, only two 
questions more. 

SHRI V.NARAYANASAMY: Sir, I am on 
a : point of order. ... (Interruptions)... 
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THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI 
SHANKAR DAYAL SINGH): Mr. Virumbi, 
if you are not going to speak then I will call 
another speaker. ... (Interruptions) ... 

SHRI SANGH PRIYA GAUTAM : He has 
not finished. ... (Interruptions) ... 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: I want to put 
only two questions. ... (Interruptions) ... 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY: 
Sir, 

... (Interruptions)... 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI 
SHANKAR DAYAL SINGH): Mr. 
Narayanasamy, please take your seat. 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY: Why? I am 
on a point of order. ... (Interruptions). 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI 
SHANKAR DAYAL SINGH): Yes, Mr. 
Virumbi. ... (Interruptions)... 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: Am I not 
entitled to ask for an assurance that the inves-
tigation should not be ... (interruptions) ... 
given in the hands of corrupt CBI officers ? ... 
(Interruptions) .. . 

SHRI VITHALRAO MADHAVRAO 
JADHAV: Sir, he should prove his 
allegations. ... (Interruptions)... Sir, we have 
no objection to whatever allegations he has 
made. He must explain it to the House. ... 
(Interruptions) ... 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY: He should 
prove the allegations. ... (interruptions)... 

SHRI S. VIDUTHALAI VIRUMBI (Tamil 
Nadu): Sir, when the Department of Econo-
mic Affairs differed from the Department of 
Public Enterprises in arriving at the fair value 
of the shares of public sector units, the 
Government did not try to find out the true 
market value of the equity in an objective 
manner excepting heavily relying on the 
quotations submitted by the selective 
purchasers. Why did the Government not try 
to find out the norms acceptable to fair-
minded people ? Out of the 825 bundles 
offered, 406 bundles were sold for a total 
amount of Rs. 1,427 crores. On 22nd January, 
1992, the Department of Economic Affairs 
sought permission to unbundle the unsold 
shares of the public sector units and make 
fresh bundles of 31 public sector units. But as 
reported on page 8, in para 18, in the second 
tranche of disinvestment in 1991-92 shares of 
public sector units were offered in 120 
bundles. That means shares of remaining 15 

public sector units were withheld, contrary to 
the decision which was approved by the 
CCEA I. therefore, want to know from the 
hon. Minister whether the Department of 
Economic Affairs or the Department of Public 
Enterprises did obtain any permission to 
rebundle in a different way. If so, why have 
you not mentioned it in the statement ? If it 
was not permitted, why has no action been 
taken against the persons involved in this 
malpractice ? The Department of Economic 
Affairs sought permission on from the CCEA 
through the same note to disinvest more than 
20 per cent but less than 50 per cent since the 
Department of Economic Affairs assured that 
in no case would this involve loss of 
Government control. What type of companies 
were these ? Were they in the status of "very 
good', 'good' or 'average* ? Let the Minister 
clarify this. The CAG report has estimated 
that if the shares that were sold in two 
tranches had been sold at the reference price 
calculated as per the earlier proposal, the 
realisation would have been Rs. 3,441 crores 
higher than it actually was. Reasons attributed 
against this argument were the prospect of low 
yield dividend and element of illiquidity. 
Government thought, it would erode the 
investors' interest. Further, you have taken in 
your hand a thing trading argument. But you 
have not given the full picture. How can we 
come to any conclusion simply by verifying 
only one transaction made by UTI ? Now I 
come to the fixed price vs bidding argument. 
It is also not correct to suppose that public 
offering at a fixed price instead of the bidding 
procedure actually followed would have 
fetched a higher total realisation. Rangarajan 
Committee report has been utilised in this 
statement as a supporting document But what 
we say is that the method of implementation 
of any policy should be above suspicion and 
even if it realised less amount than what was 
actually realised, the element of doubt would 
not have arisen at all if it was offered at a 
fixed price. Why did you rush up for 
disinvestment? This is the question which will 
arise here. They have said that to contain 
inflation mobilisation became imperative and 
that is why urgent action was resorted to. 
Government has set targets for deficit 
reduction and failure to meet that end—
December targets—would have sent wrong 
signals, both domestically and internationally. 
What I want to point out is this. Has not the 
Government resorted to FDA,"Fast 
Disbursement Aid*', in the Aid Package 
announced recently by our dor or countries 
and the World Bank to the tune of 12 billions 
? You did not feel anything about this. When 
they 
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offered only 1.4 billion for FDA you had 
requested for enhancement of the amount. At 
that time you did not worry about the wrong 
signals that may be sent to the world at large. 
What type of cheap argument have you put 
forth to cover up this indecent play ? Sir, what 
I would like to know is why, when the 
Department of Economic Affairs has given a 
note saying that it should be offered, even in 
the Industrial Policy and also in the Budget 
Speech the hon. Minister said that the shares 
would be offered to the public as well as the 
workers along with multinationals, financial 
institutions etc., no mention was made about 
this either in the DPE report or in the 
Department of Economic Affairs report. Why 
did you keep mum in this report ? As for the 
action, I feel that this is worse, even worse 
than Bofors, 20 times worse, than Bofors. It is 
a day-light robbery. It should be cut in the 
bud; otherwise, it will ruin the nation. 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY: Thank you, 
Mr. Vice-Chairman, Sir, for giving me this 
opportunity. A controversy has been created 
by die Opposition on the disinvestment policy 
that was adopted by the Government and on 
the method by which the Government has 
disinvested its shares of the public sector 
companies through the financial institutions 
and the mutual funds. Sir, when the SJP 
Government was in power, the then Finance 
Minister, while presenting his interim Budget 
categorically stated about their decision to 
disinvest the shares of the selected public 
sector undertakings in favour of mutual funds 
and funding or investment institutions in the 
public sector. That was the policy decision 
which was taken by the previous Government. 
And, thereafter, our Government came into 
power. The present Finance Minister 
announced in 1991 that the Government had 
proposed to disinvest 15 to 20 per cent of the 
shares for the purpose of recouping the deficit. 
Thereafter, a Committee was appointed to 
determine as to how the shares should be 
valued. And the Department of Public 
Enterprises did the job and the Bombay-based 
consultants were also appointed for the 
purpose of pricing the shares. Sir, when the 
decision was taken, the Government was very 
much concerned to see to it that the shares 
were not undervalued. The Controller of 
Capital Issues can' also determine the value of 
the shares. But the Government took a 
concerted decision that it should not go to 
them for the simple reason that they might 
value the shares lesser than the amount that 
was prevailing in 

the market and also the net value. Then, the 
Government selected 31 public sector under-
takings whose shares were to be disinvested. 
Now the Opposition is making a hue and cry 
that the disinvestment policy that was adopted 
and the procedure that was adopted for disin-
vesting the shares of the company were not on 
sound lines and that there was corruption on a 
large scale. They were trying to accuse 
everybody from heaven to earth, the bureauc-
rats, the politicians, the Ministers, everybody 
including the hon. Prime Minister and his 
family members. But, they have not produced 
a single piece of evidence in this House to 
prove that any bureaucrat or any politician or, 
for that matter, the hon. Prime Minister and 
his family members were involved. It is very 
easy for us, as persons in public life, to cast 
aspersions against anybody, the Prime 
Minister, the. Finance Minister, the other 
Ministers or the Members of Parliament. But 
it should be substantiated. Mr. Jethmalani, 
who is a very senior Member of this House, 
and his senior lawyer, know very well that 
what they say in the House will have to be 
proved. Making wild allegations for the 
purpose of getting something is not going to 
solve the problem. From the way they have put 
forth their views, it is very clear that they 
wanted to make wild allegations against the 
Government, against the Prime Minister, 
against the Ministers and also against the 
bureaucrats. Sir, I am putting a simple 
question to Mr. Jethmalani whether he can 
produce any documentary evidence to show 
that there was fraud. You cannot do it. You 
have nothing to say about it. You can only 
make wild allegations. 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: Shall I pro-
duce video-cassettes ? ... (Interruptions)... 

SHRI SANGH PRIYA GAUTAM : I am on 
a point of order. I would request you to direct 
the Member to put questions to the hon. 
Minister and not to any Member. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI 
SHANKAR DAYAL SINGH): You please 
put your questions to the Minister. 

4.00 P.M. 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY: I am asking 

the Minister also. 

SHRI DIGVIJAY SINGH: He is answering 
on behalf of the Minister. 

SHRI KAMAL MORARKA: He should be 
upgraded as a Minister of State. I appoint you. 
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SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY: Mr. 
Jethmalani was saying that the Government 
had lost Rs. 54,000 crores. Since they have 
not gone to the public with their shares, they 
have lost Rs. 54,000 crores. As I mentioned 
earlier, it was the then Government which 
took the decision to go to mutual funds and 
financial institutions for the purpose of 
disinvestment of the shares of the Central 
Government and the present Government, 
when it took over, found that it had to be 
followed. 

I would like to quote two examples which 
Mr. Jethmalani also knows When Mrs. 
Margaret Thatcher was the Prime Minister of 
the United Kingdom, there were allegations 
against her when she disinvested the shares of 
a petroleum 

company and also of some other corporation, 
the British Telecom. These are bound to be 
there. When the Government started disinvest-
ment in public sector undertakings for the first 
time, here or there, there may be lapses. I am 
not saying that it is a foolproof system. Now, 
we started disinvesting the shares of both 
sound and weak public sector units. The 
shares have been bundled up and a scheme 
was adopted. It was done by the Government. 
But accusing the Government, the officials 
and the politicians, saying that they have a 
hand in it without any proof, is not fair on the 
part of this House. We have got a tradition in 
this House that without any authenticity, 
without any recorded p.oof, we will not make 
allegations made against anybody. But if you 
make wild allegations, it shows that you want 
to have cheap popularity and do not want to 
help the Government in improving the system. 
If there are lapses, if there are some defects in 
the system, they should give concrete 
suggestions to the Government for the purpose 
of improving the system so that the Govern-
ment will be able to gain in this. Therefore, I 
am pained to say in this House that on such an 
important matter, the hon. Members from the 
other side started hurling allegations against 
the Government, against bureaucrats and 
against everybody on earth instead of giving 
concrete suggestions. 

I would like to ask the hon. Finance 
Minister two questions. One is, while valuing 
the shares, I want to know whether the 
Government has taken into consideration the 
assets, i.e. the fixed assets—land value of the 
properties—of the pubic sector undertakings 
because the land value now-a-days is 
shooting up I would like to know whether this 
was also considered by the Government while 
valuing the shares and living the value. The 
second is, you appointed a 

Bombay-based consultant firm and they sub-
mitted the first volume of their report on 10th 
December and on 10th December, you went 
to the public for the purpose of bids. Why did 
you take a decision in such a haste instead of 
waiting for the report to come and evaluating 
it? You should have evaluated the report and 
then gone to the market for the purpose of 
disinvestment. Why I am saying this is 
because three reports were submitted on 10th, 
12th and 18th of December. Why did you take 
a decision within such a short time even 
before the other reports were submitted ? Even 
after the bids were called for, I would like to 
know whether you have considered the report 
of the consultants or not. I would like to know 
from the hon. Finance Minister on these two 
important things. 

Thank you. Sir. 

SHRI JAGMOHAN (Nominated;: Sir, as 
usual, my turn comes last and much has 
already been said. However, I would like to 
indicate a few points. One is, this is not an 
opinion given by an ordinary person. This is 
an opinion given by an expert body, an 
experienced body like the CAG. The best way 
of proceeding further in the matter is to have 
the matter thoroughly scrutinised by the 
Public Accounts Committee. The Public 
Accounts Committee is the right forum to 
consider this. 

This is a prima facie observation made by 
the Comptroller and Auditor-General. The 
Public Accounts Commitee should now 
examine the witnesses, see the records, cross-
examine the people and Uy to find out the 
truth. Howcan we, sitting here, decide on the 
basis of the note what the truth is ? We cannot 
do it and it has to go to the Public Accounts 
Committee which will examine the issue, 
cross-examine people and make a detailed 
examination of the case. Now, there are 14 
Members of the Committee and all of them 
can be called individually and asked as to 
how it is that only four were taking part and 
others did not participate. So, these things can 
be ascertained. To cut short a long story, I 
would only say that the PAC should consider 
this issue in depth, scrutinise it and come 
back to the House as quickly as possible and, 
thereafter, a meaningful and a purposeful 
discussion can take place. All that I would 
request the Finance Minister to do is give an 
assurance to the House on behalf of the 
Government that if the Public Accounts 
Committee comes to the conclusion til at 
there has been an error of judgment or ihere 
has been something over and above an 



259     Calling attention to a matter        [RAJYA SABHA]  of Urgent Public Importance    260 

error of judgment then they would consider 
this issue in depth again. 

The second thing that I want to mention is 
that the honourable Finance Minister knows 
very well that this type of disinvestment was 
done in the United Kingdom also. What was 
the procedure adopted at that time? It would 
be helpful to us if that procedure is indicated 
and we would be enlightened if it is made 
known whether that procedure to get the best 
value for the shares of the public sector 
undertakings has been followed or not. 

Another thing that strikes me is this bun-
dling. To me, this bundling looks very 
mysterious. I am not an accountant. It seems 
to Hie Jo be one of the procedures which the 
bureaucrats and others usually adopt to create 
diffusion of responsibility. They accumulate 
so many things and nobody can find out who 
is at fault I am reminded of a joke; actually, it 
is a fact A Deputy Secretary to the 
Government forgot to deal with a file which 
had to be sent to the Home Secretary and then 
he suddenly realised that he had kept this file 
in his almirah. The Home Secretary at that 
time was a very tough person and if he took 
that file to the Home Secretary then, he would 
lose his job. So, he was very very perturbed. 
Then, a Section Officer came and asked him, 
"Sir, why are you so perturbed?". The Deputy 
Secretary said, "This is the fault that I have 
committed and I have no explanation to 
offer." Then the Section Officer said, "Don't 
bother. Sir. I will record such a confusing note 
that nobody would be able to ascertain who is 
at fault and by that time the Home Secretary 
would have retired. By the time the file comes 
back to you, he would have retired". So, this 
bundling and raising such issues are some of 
the ways of diluting the responsibility and that 
is what, I think, we should be very careful 
about. I think the observation made by the 
CAG is very pertinent which, I think, has not 
been convincingly replied to in the note. 

The Vice-Chairman (Shri V. Narayanasamy) 
in the Chair 

The CAG asks whether the computation of 
the value of the shares for disinvestment was 
done even before the fixation of the reserve 
price of shares of each PSE. The rational 
method of bundling cannot be ascertained 
unless this step is taken first. So, this is the 
issue, whether there has been some sort of the 
Section Officer-type of device of confusing 
people or not. 

The other thing is about wider participation. 
That is one of the arguments given that their 
objective was to secure wider participation of 
equity shares. I wonder whether this objective 
has ultimately been realised. It has not been 
realised because we know that the shares have 
been cornered by a few individuals who have 
made profits. 

Another point that arises is that the Finance 
Minister, in the ultimate analysis, has said 
that this matter is being inquired into. It 
would be much better if he clarifies what is 
being inquired into, at what stage the inquiry 
is, what the precise thing which is being 
inquired into and what it is trying to do. 

Another ining that has been mentioned is 
that we were in haste because the fiscal deficit 
had to be accounted for before the 31st 
March. But earlier three methods were 
indicated to determine the share value and, 
ultimately,when the Suresh Kumar 
Committee was appointed, they abandoned all 
the three methods. 

I cannot understand why they bundled it so 
lightly. If the response was not positive and if 
there was some problem, then it was all the 
more reason why we should have proceeded 
slowly with it. And particularly when it is 
stated in the note itself that we were trying to 
explore uncharted areas, it was all the more 
reason why more caution and care should 
have been exercised when the area was 
uncharted. And I don't think much would 
have happened if we had not disposed of by 
31st March. After all, it would have been in 
April. In April, the same impact on the 
economy would have happened. These are the 
six points which I have, and which may be 
looked into 

And, Sir, there is another point about fiscal 
deficit. Although it is a little light at the same 
time it is very serious. Why do the fiscal 
deficits happen in our country ? It is because 
we are not looking to the areas where the 
economy can really be affected. We know 
very recently what our Chief Election 
Commissioner has done. He has given a 
statement in the press that "now good sense 
has prevailed and I have modified my order." 
But will anybody in this House consider what 
the cost is of changing from bad sense to good 
sense ? How much money this poor country 
which is in debt has paid for this type of 
transfer from bad sense to good sense ? 
Nobody calculates those costs, both visible 
and invisible. 

SHRI SUBRAMANIAN SWAMY: He did 
not say 'good sense' on him. 
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SHRI JAGMOHAN : May be. But this is 
what he said—good sense. The issue is that if 
we really want to control fiscal deficit, these 
are the visible and invisible costs—so much 
of litigation, so much of payment being made 
to different people—which also need to be 
looked into. Although it does not arise out of 
this, I thought this is the point which the 
nation should look into. Thank you, very 
much. 

SHRI RAJENDRA PRASAD MODY 
(Rajasthan): Mr. Vice-Chairman, Sir, the dis-
investment of shares in public sector 
enterprises has invited wide criticism from 
the media. The Comptroller & Auditor-
General's report is quite an indictment by 
itself. The ex-Secretary. Department of Public 
Enterprises, Ministry of Industry, says that 
the CAG report is a clerk's 

report. When questioned further, he says, 
"Don't ask me. The rules of public sector 
disinvestment were all laid down by the 
Finance Ministry." The Finance Ministry says, 
"No, the entire responsibility was that of the 
Ministry of Industry, so much so, that even 
the particular combination in each bundle 
would also be decided by the Department of 
Public Enterprises." There is too much 
confusion. One should be able to first identify 
which agency is responsible for this given 
situation. Be that as it may. Sir, it is very 
unfortunate that such a large disinvestment in 
the country has been handled in such a 
cursory manner, if I may use the word. Sir, 
when Margaret Thatcher first proposed 
privatisation and when companies like the 
British Petroleum, then you could walk into 
any branch of any bank in the whole of the 
United Kingdom, fill in a form, tender your 
money, and the computer decides, since there 
was large over-subscription, that this will be 
your allocation. Millions of countrymen 
became the holders of the country's national 
asset. Here we are saying that we could not 
resort to this because of the urgency of the 
situation, because there was fiscal deficit to be 
contained, inflation had to be taken care of. 
and visibly we had to tell internationally and 
within the country that we are serious and we 
intend to contain it. 

Sir, there can be situations when somebody 
has to handle it in that manner. But given that 
situation, it was all the more reason that you 
do not confuse the whole affair by creating 
bundles. 

The shares that have been sold are prime 
assets of such great value that even if one par-
ticular company's shares were picked up. Rs 

3000 crores would have been immediately 
recovered. I will just give you an example of a 
company. Steel Authority of India Limited. 
The average price realisation at which it was 
sold is at Rs. 13/-. Tata Steel at a time when 
the stock market was high, was quoted at Rs. 
300. The Rs. 10/-scrip was quoted at Rs. 300/- 
and at the time when the stock market today is 
at its lowest ebb given the scam and the 
consequential effects of it, it is still quoted at 
Rs. 170/- even today. It is a fact today that the 
performance of the Steel Authority of India 
Limited is better than that of Tata Steel. With 
that given scenario, what should be the price 
of the Steel Authority? Rs. 4000 crores is the 
equity paid-up capital of the Steel Authority 
of India Limited. The Steel Authority went on 
record, and also the IPCL, both—these two 
companies—and they specifically advised and 
also communicated through their 
administrative Ministries that 'Please, don't 
disinvest our shares because we intend to go 
to the public shortly and, therefore, it is 
imperative that no price is fixed which could 
harm our interest in going public' In this given 
situation, still they were sold and I might 
submit—and I would like to show the 
confusion—that by a mere sale of the large 
number of shares of Steel Authority of India 
Limited—20 per cent is a very confusing 
figure because percentages often present a 
different configuration; the share scrips were 
19 crores and 90 lakhs, we are not talking of 
this value but of shares scrips each worth Rs. 
10 were sold and these scrips alone were more 
than enough to have recovered the deficit if 
these shares were to get jusi Rs. 100/- 
Therefore, my first question as a clarification 
would be, how come that SAIL and IPCL 
were included in this bundle at all despite the 
advice to the contrary' of the P.E.C. and the 
administrative Ministry? Disinvestment of 
shares in Cochin Refinery' and Andrew Yule 
which were listed on the stock exchanges and 
which was contrary to the Government 
decision, have also been included in the 
bundle. How was this done ? Besides the 
urgency, the question that arises is, we are 
told, well at least one cannot challenge the 
bonafides. Sales have been made either to the 
banks or to the financial institutions or to 
Government Mutual Funds. Government 
Mutual Funds or private sector mutual funds 
do not make any difference The owners in the 
ultimate analysis are their members whether 
promoted by the Government or privately. 
Even then, national property, national assets 
cannot be given away even to banks or the 
financial institutions. What is national asset 
must remain with the Govern- 
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ment of India and the largesse cannot be dis-
tributed in this manner to the banks or to the 
financial institutions either. 

Just to give an example, there is a bundle 
No. 61. This is one example that I quote. This 
was sold for Rs. 8 crores. This bundle was 
sold by the bank for Rs. 13 crores and 
together with this bundle of Rs. 13 crores, 
some 17 crores worth of loss in linked 
debentures were added, thereby making the 
total cost of the bundle at Rs. 30 crores. The 
broker buys it at Rs. 30 crores and plans to 
sell it at Rs. 38 crores. So, by clear admission, 
something that was sold for Rs. 8 crores will 
recover some Rs. 40 crores, which means five 
times the value, it means it was 
under-valued __ (Time bell). I thought it was a 
maiden speech and there would be some more 
lime. I thought the matter was quite 
important. But if you want, I can close the 
discussion right away. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI V. 
NARAYANASAMY): I was told that you 
made your maiden speech yesterday. 

SHRI RAJENDRA PRASAD MODY : 
You were in the House, Sir. 

SHRI   SIKANDER   BAKHT:   It   was   a 

supplementary. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI V. 
NARAYANASAMY) : 1 was informed like 
that. I do not know. All right, you can 
continue now. 

SHRI RAJENDRA PRASAD MODY: Is 
anybody so naive, any person with no 
financial knowledge, no background, 
whatsoever, to explain to us that you can 
make a bundle of very good, good and 
average shares and you are going lo realise 
more money in the process ? Is anybody so 
naive that he is going to sell his shares or 
recover his money and say that if you make 
this bundle, perhaps, you can get a better 
price? This bundling was done intentionally. I 
will tell you why. 

I have made a calculation. Out of these 30 
companies, I selected 16 companies at radom. 
Ten of these companies are very good and 
good companies. The rest six companies are 
average companies. I find that 46.88 crore 
scrips—I am not talking of the value which 
would be about Rs. 460 crores—represent 
very' good shares. The average shares are only 
8 crores and 51) lakhs. This means, if you are 
saying that you are selling 20 per cent shares 
of Steel Authority of India Limited, you are 
selling 200 crore shares. 

On the other hand, in the case of the Dredging 
Corporation of India, which are average 
shares, the sales are only 1.44 per cent and the 
total number of shares is only 4 lakhs. If you 
are selling the shares of M.M.T.C., which are 
average shares again, you are selling only 
0.67 per cent and, in absolute numbers, you 
are selling 3.34 lakhs shares only. Here, you 
are talking about 47 crores of good shares 
versus 8 crores of average shares. In such a 
case, how on earth could a bundle be ever 
prepared which would be able to give you a 
good price for the shares, not to talk of 
companies like the Cochin Refineries ? At 
that, point of time, the shares of Cochin 
Refineries, for example, were quoted at a very 
high price. People were prepared to pay even 
Rs. 500 for a share. The shares were not 
available in the market at any price. Such 
shares, which are a national asset, such shares 
of high value, have been disposed of at very 
low prices. 

The point at issue is this. The C.A.G, report 
is merely based on D.C.F. value. In true 
terms, these shares would have realised such 
substantially higher prices as are mind-
boggling. Let us take a simple example. The 
Steel Authority of India Limited is worth Rs. 
4,000 crores in terms of its equity value. All 
the steel plants of the Steel Authority of India 
Limited, Rourkela, Bhilai, Durgapur and 
Bokaro, put together, are worth Rs. 4,000 
crores plus the loans of the Steel Authority of 
India Limited. Al this price, you cannot set up 
even one steel plant in the country today. 
Such is the manner in which the shares of 
Steel Authority of India Limited and the 
shares of such other concerns high-value 
shares, have been disposed of. One reads into 
this something. 

Now. in the case of the Steel Authority of 
India Limited, they have gone on record 
where they have told the Government that 
they are prepared to pay back equity worth Rs. 
3,000 crores. They have said that they are 
prepared to refund the equity money. Steel 
Authority of India Limited is worried because 
its share fetches only Rs. 13. Can you imagine 
a public 

sector undertaking being prepared to payback 
to the Government Rs. 3,000 crores? They say 
'We are in a position to refund Rs. 3.000 
crores back to you". They are prepared to 
refund 75 per cent of the equity back to the 
Government. 

I.P.C.L. would be an excellent example. It 
has done a deal with an N.R.I, for getting Rs. 
600 crores as loan in foreign exchange for 
setting up a new plant. The I.P.C.L., in turn, 
has given 3 
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per cent of its equity and accepted part of the 
loan as repayment to the N.R.I. It is worth 
calculating to see what is the price it has 
recovered in the process for its equity. 

As matters stand now, if the Ministry of 
Industry, as the Ministry of Finance says, is 
responsible for the entire operation, it really 
behaves of the Ministry of Finance and it is 
absolutely necessary' that the Ministry of 
Finance goes into it thoroughly. The operation 
is of such a magnitude. The assets of the 
country of such high value have been 
disposed of in a manner so casual, 
particularly, when the country is suffering and 
needs such large inputs Incidentally, there is 
going to be another fiscal deficit. It is obvious 
that at least by now something should have 
been done to recover on a more scientific and 
systematic basis. The important thing that I 
am trying to impress on the House is that the 
atmosphere being vitiated and charged, as it 
is. don't you think that transparency in 
Government work is absolutely essential ? 
Transparency is definitely missing May I ask. 
as my last clarification, that two annexures 
may be placed on the Table of the House? 
One annexure should give us the details of the 
names of PSEs whose shares were sold; the 
category of the PSEs, i.e. their share were 
classified as 'very good', 'good' or 'average*; 
the number of shares disinvested; the percen-
tage of disinvestment of equity; the original 
reserve price per share based on the best of 
two averages of NAV, PECV and DCF: the 
revised reserve price fixed by Government as 
the average of NAV plus PECV: the net 
realisation per share and the market value on 
or about the date of sale, wherever possible. 

The Second annexure that might be.placed 
on the Table of the House should give the 
bundle number, the quantities of shares com-
prised in each bundle. That would give a fair 
picture which is not available to the House at 
the moment either by means of this note or 
otherwise, to be able to make a good 
assessment of what exactly has been done. I 
fail to reconcile myself to the situation that 
when it comes to average shares, the average 
shares have been sold off only in small 
percentages—0.67 per cent 027 per cent. 1.44 
per cent and 3.64 per cent. These are the 
average ones. The shares of the excellent or 
very good ones have been sold at 20 per cent 
and less—whether you take Madras Refinery, 
whether you taken Mahanagar Telephone 
Nigam, Hindustan Petroleum, Bharat 
Petroleum, Bharat Heavy Electricals. 

Indian   Petro  Chemicals  or you   take   Steel 
Authority of India. 

Thank you, Sir 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI V. 
NARAYANASAMY) : Shri Sikander Bakht. 
Only five minutes because your party's time 
is over. 

† []   (Transliteralion in Arabic Script. 
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For instance, "has been conducted properly 

with full Cabinet authority and with no impro-
priety", "to public sector mutual funds, banks 
and financial institutions and even the deci-
sion...", "was alleged that the programme of dis-
investment was implemented in haste, on 
account of commitments, etc... are not right. 1 
would like to state categorically that those 
criticisms are entirely unfounded..'." etc. etc. 

"If by chance the sale took place at an under-
priced level, the benefit would accrue to public 
sector." 

 
But at least you have accepted: 

†[ ] Transliteration in Arabic Script 

 

What is the dimension of the irregularities 
lutre ? 
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Then the prices of the bundles were 
reduced. The buyers could sell them overnight 
for a lot of profit. 

Was it mandatory that all the PSU shares to 
be disinvested had to be first listed in the 
Stock Exchange   to   determine   their   real   
market 
value? 

Why were the stocks not listed with  the 
stock exchange ? 

The off-loading of the shares through the 
Stock Exchange is also one of the mandatory 
conditions. 

A terrible fraud has been played with the 
Government exchequer. 1 am sorry to say that 
the Government is taking it very lightly. 

Whatever the original price, it was 
tampered with at the bundle levels. 
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†[   ] Transliteration in Arabic Script. 
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Was it mandatory that all the PSU shares to 
be disinvested has to be first listed in the 
Stock Exchange to determine their real 
market value? 

Whatever the original price, it was 
tampered with at the bundle levels. 

The off-loading of the shares through the 
Stock Exchange is also one of the mandatory 
conditions. 

Then the prices of the bundles were 
reduced. The buyers could seli them overnight 
for a lot of 
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Why were the stocks not listed with the 
stock exchange? 

A terrible fraud has been played with the 
Government exchequer. I am sorry to say that the 
Government is taking it very lightly. 

THE MINISTER OF FINANCE (SHRI 
MANMOHAN SINGH): Mr. Vice-Chairman, 
Sir, I am very grateful to all the hon. Members 
who have raised the issues. I do agree with the 
Members that disinvestment is a serious matter. It is 
precisely because our Government takes it as a 
very serious issue that we have tried to place 
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all the cards on the table, how the process 
began, what problems we faced, at what stage 
Cabinet decisions were taken, how they were 
implemented, how some decisions taken were 
subsequently modified and why it was 
necessary. One may differ on what we did, 
but I do not plead guilty to the charge that we 
have tried to put anything under the carpet. 

The second thing that I do want to say 
about this matter is that, as was pointed out in 
the last paragraph which several hon. 
Members have quoted, we were dealing with 
the disinvestment of public sector units whose 
shares, with the exception of two or three 
units, were not quoted in the market. If we 
were to wait for their being listed, it would 
have taken several months, and that process 
could not be delayed for the reasons I have 
mentioned in my statement. 

It is true that we were worried about the 
fiscal deficit and, therefore, we tried to 
complete that process by December. If you 
say that this was haste, I plead guilty to it 
because we had to reduce the fiscal deficit at 
that time when our economy was faced with 
the most serious economic crisis. It was not 
something on which we could have simply 
said, "Well, let us leave the fisical deficit to 
take care of itself." 

At that stage if we had not reduced the 
fiscal deficit, the overall economic health of 
the country, the national and international 
confidence in our currency would have been 
gravely affected. Our ability to reduce 
inflationary pressures, our ability to reduce 
inflationary expectations and better 
management of balance of payments would 
have suffered. 

Sir, several Members have raised the issue 
of disinvestment by the Government I have 
pointed out in my statement that we were 
disinvesting in the background of the fact that 
many of the public sector units never traded 
on the markets. So, what would be the fair 
price was a subject-matter about which 
opinions could differ. This is the case not only 
in our country, but all over the world. Where 
disinvestment has taken place, differences 
have arisen, perceptions do differ. The real 
thing is, it is precisely for this reason that we 
said, because we were dealing with 
disinvestment for the first time, there were 
chances that we may make mistakes, but we 
must make sure that if any mistakes were 
made, the benefit of that would not accrue to 
the private sector, but would go mostly to the 
public, sector. That is why in the first stage we 
said we would limit the sale of these shares 
essentially to public sector units. 

Now, a question has been raised whether 
there was a deliberate conspiracy to sell these 
public sector shares to mutual funds of the 
banks at a lowprice. The second part of the 
conspiracy was that these people would in 
turn sell at a profit or they would indulge in 
certain transactions with brokers. I would like 
to share with the House the data that I have 
with regard to the shares which were sold 
subsequently. The in formation that I have is 
that the Unit Trust oflndia bought over Rs. 
3,040 crores of shares. All that the Unit Trust 
has been able to sell is only Rs. 29 crores. Al! 
the rest of the shares according to the 
information that is available with me. are still 
with the Unit Trust oflndia. Allahabad 
Bank— I think it is a mutual fund: 1 do not 
know which one, but part of that—bought for 
Rs. 62 crores, of which they sold Rs. 26 
crores. SBI bought for Rs. 39.62 crores. They 
sold out of it Rs. 26.44 crores. Now, on the 
basis of this information, of the sales of Rs. 
3,040 crores, roughly with respect to these 
three the sales amount to only Rs. 81 crores. 
Therefore, I humbly submit that from the 
available data it would not be proper to con-
clude that there was a big conspiracy to 
reward unscrupulous brobers, because the 
bulk of these shares are still with the public 
sector entities, which originally bought these 
shares. 

SHRI INDER KUMAR GUJRAL: You had 
divided all the shares into three parts—very 
good, good and not so good. I would like to 
understand whether the ones that were 
unloaded subsequently were ones that were 
considered very good or only those which 
were not good or not very good. Or were they 
sold in bundles ? 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH : I do not 
have that data. I can make the information 
available to the hon. Member. 

PROF. SAURIN BHATTACHARYA: Mr. 
Singh, if you allow... 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI V. 
NARAYANASAMY): Mr. Bhattacharya, has 
the Minister yielded or not? I do not know. 

PROF. SAURIN BHATTACHARYA: Of 
course. Unless he yields, how can I___  

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: I cannot 
answer all these questions if they... 

SHRI MURLIDHAR CHANDRAKANT 
BHANDARE: Let him not break his chain of 
thought 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: So many 
valuable points have been made and I am 
trying 
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to recollect my thoughts. Shri Jethmalani 
asked a question with regard to the sale of the 
shares. Now, I have tried to answer that 
question that the Securities Act does not 
forbid market sale. But in law—as he has 
pointed out correctly— these have to be spot 
deliveries. If there had been any forward deal, 
that could constitute a violation of the 
Securities and Exchange Act. That is why I 
said it is a matter which we are 

investigating and if anybody is found guilty of 
having violated the laws of this land— 
whosoever he happens to be—1 think he will 
be dealt with in accordance with the 
provisions of the law.... (Interruptions)... 

Now the broad philosophy of why we resor-
ted to the system of bundling is explained in 
my statement because the system of bunding 
was chosen as a device and we wanted to sell 
a variety of shares. If we wanted to sell the 
shares of only those companies which were 
traded on the market then, we would have sold 
the shares of only three companies. If I wanted 
to sell the shares of only very good 
companies, in that case also our options would 
have been limited. Along with the sale of 
sltnrea of very good companies, we wanted to 
begin the process of selling the shares of 
companies which were average or only good. 
That was the reason why the system of 
bundling was chosen as a device. Now the 
question is: Does bundling get you a better 
price? I think there is no conclusive way of 
proving it. But certainly the system of 
bundling enables us to sell a larger variety of 
shares than would have been possible in the 
absence of bundling. It is true that if we were 
considering only the sale of shares of the Steel 
Authority of India Limited, we might have got 
a better price. But we would never have been 
able to sell the shares of just average 
companies. So I think whffll you want to 
compare, you must compare like with like. 
Merely by looking at the prices of the shares 
of the Steel Authority of India Limited, you 
can't conclude that we really made a loss in. 
the bargain. 

Now the second issue, I think, several hon-
ourable Members have raised is about calcula-
tion of the loss. The CAG report mentions one 
such figure and I have tried to explain why we 
consider that it is not a correct indication of 
the fact. 

Now, imagine a case. I have a house. 
Rightly or wrongly I consider that house is 
worth of Rs. 1000. But there are no takers for 
that for Rs. 1000. So let us say that the market 
value of that house is Rs. 500. Now, are you 
going to say. 

"I have made a loss of Rs. 500". Ultimately if 
you are dealing with market transactions, the 
only viable test is how the market views these 
shares. If there were no takers at that reserve 
price, it was certainly open to us and we could 
have said, "Well, we had fixed one reserve 
price and there are no takers for that; let us not 
sell." But I have explained, for example, the 
reasons why we were keen that along with the 
other objective, we must use the sale of shares 
to reduce the fiscal deficit. Therefore, we did 
not have that option. We did not also have the 
option to proceed in the leisurely manner 
which has been suggested by the Members. 
We were keen to reduce the fiscal deficit 
visibly and in the short term and given that 
compulsion. Therefore, when we found out 
that we originally fixed the reserve price 
which was something which nobody was 
willing to pay...we, therefore, decided to find 
out the established practice in this matter. 
And, the established practice in this matter 
until then, previously, was that shares used to 
be valued by the then Controller of Capital 
Issues. He had a particular formula. We said, 
"Let us, therefore, use that formula for the 
recalculation of the reference price." This is 
the background of why the reference price had 
to be changed. I think Mr. Morarka had 
mentioned that the Cabinet Committee on 
Economic Affairs had approved a reference 
price and then we changed it. The Cabinet 
Committee on Economic Affairs considered 
the note, it made certain suggestions, but it 
never approved that. It is when we went back, 
for the second time, to the Cabinet Committee 
on Economic Affairs that it approved the fall 
package. So, the implication of Shri Morarka 
that we had somehow violated what was 
decided by the Cabinet Committee on 
Economic Affairs is, I humbly submit, not 
correct. 

Now, Mr. Jethmalani asked me, "Please tell 
•us what would have been the price if you had 
directly sold these shares in the market." I sub-
mit to you that that option was not available to 
us because only three companies' shares were 
listed on the market and the rest of the shares 
were not listed. So, even if we wanted to sell 
them in March, 1992, that option was not 
available tous. Even the notional figure of Rs. 
50,000 crores that Shri Jethmalani has 
mentioned, I respectfully submit, has no 
objective basis. In any case, a large number of 
shares were sold in December and when we 
sold these shares in December, 1991, we had 
no idea of what the price would be in March, 
1992. Therefore, I 
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would respectfully submit that it is not 
possible for me to agree with his assessment 
of the loss at Rs. 40,000-50,000 crores. 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: In retrospect, 
do you agree that in March, 1992 it would 
have been more? (Interruption). 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: I res-
pectfully submit that the March figures also 
turned out to be artificial and inflated. If you 
had a large number of shares in the market, I 
do not think it could have been realised in that 
situation. 

Now, Shri Jethmalani asked me what type 
of inquiry it was. I have answered that 
question as to whether there had been any 
violation of the provisions of the Securities 
and Exchanges Act. In the onward process of 
selling, these are the things which are being 
employed. If there had been any violation, we 
will take appropriate action. Mr. Jethmalani 
also referred to the huge profit on sale being 
shared by brokers. I have given the figures. 
The bulk of these shares are still with the 
public sector. The Unit Trust which bought 
over 2000 crores of shares has sold only about 
29 crores. Therefore, this charge that huge 
profits were deliberately sought to be 
conferred on the brokers through the process 
of disinvestment, I respectfully submit, lacks 
credibility. 

There have been several allegations about 
officials. Let tne say, we are not in the 
business of covering up any official or for that 
matter, any Minister. If any specific, concrete, 
examples are brought to our notice, I assure 
you, we will undertake proper investigation. 
But, I think, it is obligatory, when people 
make such allegations, that they have to check 
the facts. For example, a reference has been 
made to this 14-member committee. I think 
the names have been mentioned here. Without 
going into the names, I can tell you this. For 
example, the name of the Principal Secretary 
to the Prime Minister being a member of that 
14-member committee is not correct. He was 
not a member of that committee. 
(Interruption). 

SHRI SIKANDER BAKHT: There are four 
people who signed. (Interruption). 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: I think it 
was Mr. Jethmalani who mentioned the name 
of the present Finance Secretary. He was not 
even in the Finance Ministry at that time. 

Now, therefore, when you make these, 
allegations, I assure you.. (Interruptions). I 
am coming to that I have nothing to hide. But 
all I 

am saying is, if you levy allegations of this 
type, nobody in the Government is going to 
work. I am worried about whether our 
Government will be able to take decisions in 
complicated matters where there is a lot of 
uncertainty and yet decisions have to be taken. 
If people have to be subjected to this sort of 
witch-hunting, I assure you, people will take 
no decisions and the Government's decision-
making process would be a casualty and the 
interest of this country will suffer. Now, you 
would ask me about the fourteen-member 
committee. That fourteen-member committee 
was headed by Shri Suresh Kumar, as I have 
pointed out. It included Shri Ramaswamy, 
Chief Advisor (Costs), Department of 
Expenditure, Shri Vagul, Chairman ICICI, 
Shri Venugopal Reddy, Joint Secretary (DE), 
Shri H. N. Gupta, Director, Investment 
Division(DE), Shri M. S. Gill, Secretary, 
Department of Capital, Secretary. Additional 
Secretaries of two administrative Ministries, 
Shri N, Vittal, Secretary (Electronics), Shri 
Ashok Chandra, Secretary, Department of 
Petroleum, Shri R. C. Bhargava, CMD, 
Maruti 

Udyog, Shri R. K. Waji CMD, Bharat Pet-
roleum, Shri Jayant Rai CMD, Andrew Yule, 
Shri Hasmukh Shah, CMD, IPCL, representa-
tive of department of Expenditure. 

SHRI SIKANDER BAKHT: Why didn't 
they participate in the signing of the 
authorised document? That is the question. 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH : It is true 
that the report is signed by Shri Suresh 
Kumar, it is signed by Shri Ramaswamy, it is 
signed by Shri M. S. Gill, it is signed by Shri 
Ashok Chandra, Secretary, Department of 
Petroleum, but it is not correct that any other 
member submitted any note of dissent. There 
is no note of dissent. Therefore, I would say 
that all these mysteries surrounding the 
Committee of twenty and all that is sought to 
be read into it I respectfully submit bear no 
relation to the fact When the Committee 
report came up, we again consulted among 
ourselves and out of these consultations, we 
took a note to the Cabinet Committee on 
Economic Affairs in November when the 
Cabinet Committee on-Economic Affairs 
asked us to go back and rework and that is 
how the decisions were taken. Therefore, this 
was purely an Advisory Committee, headed 
by Shri Suresh Kumar, and it was not a 
Committee which was sitting in judgment 
over the Cabinet Committee on Economic 
Affairs. 

Now, Shri Ram Jethmalani asked why we 
made it a family affair I have already 
answered 
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that question. It is precisely because we were 
afraid of any errors being made in the first ever act 
of disinvestment We were keen to see that in case 
of any error the gain should not accrue to the 
private sector but should be confined to the public 
sector. And I would also like to point out about 
U.K. Several Members have asked about UJK.—
what happened in the U.K. I am not an expert on 
what happened in U.K. But there is a vital 
difference between disinvestment as it has taken 
place in other countries and disinvestment being 
undertaken in India. First of all, our disinvestment is 
not a sale of public sector units. In the United 
Kingdom, the public sector units were sold lock, 
stock and barrel to the private sector. I dare say if 
we were to offer these units for sale in their 
entirety, we would get a much better price. But if 
you are saying that the Government would 
continue to retain control over management, the 
Government would continue to control the bulk of 
the share capital and then offer a part of the share 
capital for sale, I think h does not require more 
than ordinary common sense of conclude that you 
would not get the same price as you would get if 
you were ever to sell these units as a going 
concern, and this is the vital difference between 
disinvestment as being undertaken in India, and 
disinvestment, as implemented in countries like 
the United Kingdom. 

5.00 PM. 

The same answer I have to repeat for Shri 
Jethmalani's question—why these two-tier sales 
because we had no experience, we wanted to 
limit any possible gains that might accrue in the 
process to the public sector units; but in the hope 
that ultimately all these things would come to 
the market, it was because of lack of our experience 
that we chose this route, this two-tier route; not 
because of any devious consideration of enriching 
any particular group of brokers. 

Shri Jethmalani also asked why this matter was 
not discussed in Parliament Now, it was our 
intention that this matter should be discussed in 
Parliament but we all know, eg.—and I did not 
mean any disrespect to Parliament— that matters 
are listed but somehow do not get discussed and 
the Government's decisionmaking process 
cannot wait I have already mentioned that we 
have dire need to reduce the fiscal deficit and, 
therefore, when this matter could not be 
discussed despite our best efforts, we would have 
been accused of dereliction of duty if we had 
said, "Because Parliament has not discussed it, we 
will not take any decision". I 

have already pointed out the urgent need to 
reduce the fiscal deficit, and given the urgency, we 
have no option but to go ahead with the dis-
investment process. 

Now, some hon. Members have raised an 
issue about the sale to the workers, sale of a part of 
the equity to the workers. That process is already 
under way. The Cabinet has already approved the 
modalities of sale of a part of the shares to the 
workers. So, that process will be undertaken, as 
I had promised in my original statement 

Shri Narayanasamy raised issues about the 
valuing of shares—whether the net asset value 
takes into account the land values. I must 
explain to you that if you are selling only a part of 
the equity, you cannot really say that land is going 
to affect the value of the shares, because you are 
not going to sell that unit in its entirety. Therefore, 
profitability of a unit has no relation to it if simply 
the price of land goes up. Now I would 
respectfully submit that this vital aspect of 
difference in the disinvestment process in India 
harms the disinvestment process in other 
countries, this should not be lost sight of. It is 
because often this is lost sight of, and a cons-
piracy theory is sought to be built that hanky-
panky is being done. 

With regard to another question that Shri 
Narayanasamy asked about the report of the 
consultants, let me say that this was the time 
when we were trying to experiment. There were 
several people we were asking, how to go about H. 
And regarding the report of the consultants, 
whether one particular report was considered or 
not—these are inputs—they did not have the 
overriding authority. The final decisions about the 
broad principles of disinvestment were made in 
the Department of Economic Affairs and in 
consultation with the concerned administrative 
Ministries. We consulted the concerned public 
sector units. It is true that the Steel Authority of 
India and one or two units said, "Let us go to the 
market straightaway." At that time I had explained 
that we felt if we did not have the Steel Authority 
of India, if we did not have the Cochin 
Refineries, if we did not have the IPCL, then the 
public sector unit sale would not look sufficiently 
attractive and, therefore, h might not prove a 
success, And it was important that sometimes the 
first step is the moat important step. We were very 
keen that when we put our first foot forward, it 
should be the foot which leads to added 
confidence in the sale of the public sector units. 
If this sale has 



285     Calling attention to a matter   [12™ AUGUST 1993]   of Urgent Public Importance    286 

proved > flop, I think the whole process of 
disinvestment would have come to naught 
right in the beginning. 

And, Sir, that is why we wanted to make 
the package sufficiently attractive so that 
people would have an incentive to bid for 
those shares. 

Now, Sir, Mr. Jagmohan has raised an 
important issue saying that we have the 
Report of the CAG. I said on that very day 
that the Government had the highest regard 
and respect for the authority and the 
institution of the CAG. There are established 
procedures laid down by Parliament as to how 
to deal with the Reports of the CAG and these 
procedures would be followed. Ws will co-
operate and I think that any modalities which 
Parliament may choose in handling the CAG 
Reports, we will co-operate and I am sure we 
have nothing to hide in this matter. 
Subsequently also I have said that if any 
Member knows about anything which has 
been wrongly done by any particular official 
or any particular Minister who is responsible 
for it, he can bring it to our notice and we will 
take appropriate action and we are not in the 
business of shielding anybody, howsoever 
high and mighty he might be. 

Shri Jagmohan wanted to know about the 
procedures in the United Kingdom. I have 
already mentioned that I am not familiar with 
the procedures in the U.K. But there is a vital 
difference between the disinvestment process 
in India and the disinvestment process that 
was undertaken in the United Kingdom. 

Now, Sir, Mr. Jagmohan has also said that if 
our objective was wider participation, we did 
not succeed. I would respectfully submit to 
him through you. Sir, that it was precisely 
because we wanted to disinvest a large 
number of shares that we chose this device of 
bundling. If we had chosen only those public 
sector undertakings whose shares were listed 
in the market, then we would have limited our 
option to the sale of three, and if we had 
limited our option only to the sale of very 
good units, then also the participation would 
not have been as wide as we intended. We 
wanted a broad-based disinvestment so that 
over a period of time, the shares of the public 
sector units of good, average as well as those 
regarded as very good were also disin-< 
vested. That was a conscious decision as part 
of a strategy to broad-base the public sector 
management and public sector accountability 
and also to raise resources in the process. 

Now, Sir, Mr. Jagmohan also mentioned 
about cornering of shares. 

 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH : I am sorry, I 
have not followed your question. Can you 
kindly repeat it ? 

 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: I have already 
mentioned that reference prices were originally 
sought to be fixed in the manner which I have 
given in my statement. Subsequently, these 
reference prices turned out to be unrealistic 
because there were no bidders and that is why 
the reference prices were sought to be reduced. 
We went back to the CCl formula because we 
found that in this territory we had no 
experience and the originally fixed reference 
prices turned out to be grossly unrealistic. If 
you ask a public sector unit about the value of 
its shares and ask them to look at their future 
earning capacity, everybody paints a rosy 
picture and yet we know that in the 
management of the public sector units, very 
often expectations and realities turn out to be 
different and those who were bidding for these 
shares were also experts in this subject. The 
Mutual Funds have been in business for a long 
time, particularly the Unit Trust of India. 

And, therefore, when they bid, they had 
ample time to assess the profitability of these 
units. And, therefore, when they bid, that was 
the assessment of the market And if we wanted 
to sell, we had no option but to revise our 
expectations with regard to the reserve price. 
And that I have stated as candidly as I can. 
There is nothing more that I can add on this 
subject. 

SHRI JAGMOHAN: What he has referred to 
and what I read from the CAG report is that 
the composition of the bundles of the shares of 
PSUs for disinvestment was determined even 
before the fixation of the reserve price. That is 
what he said. 
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SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: I have men-
tioned that the fixation of the reserve price for 
each share known once you have a particular 
formula. The calculation of a reserve price is 
pure arithmetic. It is not something which 
requires, I think, any great knowledge. Any 
school boy could do it once you tell him what 
the formula is. 

I think, Shri Sikander Bakhtji raised some 
issues with regard to the 14-rnember 
Committee—how many signed and how many 
did not sign. I have already given the details. 
He also asked about the role of the Strategic 
Consultants, litis was a group of consultants, I 
understand, which was engaged by the Depart-
ment of Public Enterprises. There were many 
consultants. They provided only the inputs. 
They did not have a determining influence. 
For that, as I have pointed out in my 
statement, proper procedures were adopted. 
He also asked: Was listing mandatory? Was 
off-loading through stock exchanges not 
mandatory? I have already answered that 
question in my statement that the terms of 
biddings stated that lhosc who bought shares 
were free to unload them on the stock 
exchange. From this, one cannot conclude that 
off-market sales were per se for bidden. The 
point is, as Shri Jethmalani has raised, 
whether in law, these were spot deliveries or 
these were forward transactions. On that, there 
is an element of doubt This is precisely the 
reason why I had stated that this is being 
leaked into. And if anybody has violated the 
law of the land, we will take appropriate 
action in this matter. 

 

SHRI SIKANDER BAKHT: Arbitrarily 
you reduced the prices three times. 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: What I am 
saying is that there is nothing arbitrary about 
reducing the prices. I have already explained 
that in the case of one reference price, reserve 
price which was fixed, we found that at that 
price there were no bidders. Now, what were 
the options ? One option was that if we were 
proceeding in a leisurely manner, we could 
say, we reject all bids. Then we come back 
and we re-look whether we had a proper 
reserve price or not Now, I have already 
explained that we had an urgency to complete 
the process of disinvestment and, therefore, at 
that particular time, the only option that was 
available to us was to go 

back and search whether there was any avail-
able objective method of valuing shares which 
had been resorted to, which had stood the test 
of time. And we found that the CCI's was the 
only tested foumula for that purpose. 
Therefore, we went back to the Cabinet 
Committee on Economic Affairs saying that 
our earlier anticipations about reserve price 
had turned out to be unrealistic we do want to 
sell these shares. Well, now if we want to sell 
these shares, then in our opinion, the formula 
given by the CCl would be a realistic formula; 
all bids below that reference price, as given by 
the CCl formula, should be rejected. All bids 
above that should be accepted. And I would 
respectfully submit... 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: Mr. Vice-
Chairman, if you permit Sir, my seeking a 
clarification, does it take more than 24 hours 
for a Finance Minister to find out whether 
they were spot delivery sales or they were 
future sales? Why have you not found out till 
today? 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH: I assure you 
that it is precisely that very question which I 
raised myself. And that is why I have added 
in my statement that enquiries are being 
made, and that we will find out. We will find 
out. I promise. 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: In 24 hours 
you could have got this information. 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH : We will 
find out We are not going to hide anything. 
We will find out. 

Shri Sikander Bakht asked: 'Did you consult 
the public sector units'? I have mentioned that 
public sector units, important public sector 
units, top managers were part of the 
Committee. Active consultations were held 
with them. I have also mentioned that one or 
two units were not in favour of being bundled 
along with others but for reasons I have 
explained, the Government decided that for 
the initial act of disinvestment to succeed, we 
had to make this package sufficiently 
attractive so that there were adequate number 
of bidders. 

Shri Jagesh Desai raised certain issues. 

SHRI MADAN BHATIA (Nominated): I 
can only add, Mr. Vice-Chairman, that the 
question whether it is a spot delivery or 
forward transaction is a very complicated 
question of law and I have handled certain 
matters requiring arguments over days. 
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DR. JINENDRA KUMAR JAIN (Madhya 
Pradesh): By saying this, you are trying to 
defend... (Interruptions). 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH : Shri Jagesh 
Desai is not here. He did raise some questions 
that we should use resources generated 
through disinvestment for additions to public 
sector units. I would say that in theory, that is 
the ideal solution, but when you are faced with 
a huge revenue deficit, I think it would be only 
a notional act of bravado on my part that today 
I can promise that I am going to disinvest and 
that I am going to use it to reduce debt or to 
give it to the public sector units. Money is a 
fungible entity. It is quite true I raise Rs. 3000 
crores; I hand it over to public sector units. 
But I have a huge revenue deficit. For that I go 
and borrow afresh. Am I really reducing the 
fiscal deficit ? Am I helping the public sector 
? I gree with him that it is in the ideal situation 
that we can eliminate the revenue deficit and 
we use the sale of public sector assets to retire 
the public debt or to add to the resources 
available to the public-sector. But that is an 
option which is not available to me. I have 
inherited an economy with a yawning revenue 
deficit. We are making every effort to reduce 
it but it will take a period of 4 to 5 years 
before I succeed in that venture. Until that 
stage arrives, I think the assurance I give of 
the type that Shri Jagesh Desai wanted would 
be quite frankly unrealistic. 

I believe I have answered most of the ques-
tions that have been raised. I thank all the 
hon. Members who have taken part in the 
debate. If there are any further questions left, I 
can answer. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI V 
NARAYANASAMY): No questions. Finance 
Minister has clarified all the points raised by 
the hon. Members. 

PROF. SAURIN BHATTACHARYA: The 
Finance Minister has yielded to everybody 
and not to me. I have one point to ask. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI V 
NARAYANASAMY): He answered in 
general all the points raised by the hon. 
Members. 

PROF. SAURIN BHATTACHARYA: His 
argument was that he had to quote from 
memory. I accepted it. But my point is 
whether utilising these resources for 
removing the deficit in the national budget is 
at par with the method followed for building 
up foreign exchange reserves from foreign 
loan. 

SHRI MANMOHAN SINGH There is no 
relation between the two. 

THE      VICE-CHAIRMAN      (SHRI      V 
NARAYANASAMY) : No more questions. 
The discussion is concluded. Mr. Jaiswal, you 
raised two or three points and the Minister has 
answered. No more questions. We are now 
taking up discussion on the bofors issue. 

DR YELAMANCHILI SIVAJI (Andhra 
Pradesh): It was mentioned in the morning 
that the Minister of State for Home Affairs, 
Mr. Rajesh Pilot will make a statement in 
regard to Andhra Pradesh. 

THE      VICE-CHAIRMAN      (SHRI      
V. 

NARAYANASAMY) •. We have received a 
letter from the hon. Minister. 

PROF.   SAURIN   BHATTACHARYA:   
Is 

there any information ? 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI V. 
NARAYANASAMY): Now, the Minister of 
Parliamentary Affairs would like to say 
something. 

THE MINISTER OF STATE IN THE 
MINISTRY OF SCIENCE AND TECHNOL-
OGY, DEPARTMENT OF ELECTRONICS 
AND DEPARTMENT OF ELECTRONICS 
AND DEPARTMENT OF OCEAN 
DEVELOPMENT AND MINISTER OF 
STATE IN THE MINISTRY OF PARLIA-
MENTARY AFFAIRS (SHRI P. R KUMAR-
MANGAI.AM): Sir, the hon. Minister of 
State for Home Affairs and Internal Security 
will be coming soon. He has just completed 
his statement in the other House. He is 
coming here. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI V. 
NARAYANASAMY): Now, we will take up 
the Short Duration Discussion. Mr. Ram 
Jethmalani was on his legs the other day. He 
has to continue his speech now. 

SHRI MENTAY PADMANABHAM: As 
soon as Mr. Rajesh Pilot comes here, Mr. 
Ram Jethmalani should stop. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI V. 
NARAYANASAMY): The Minister will 
come here and make the statement. 

SHRI MENTAY PADMANABHAM- As 
soon as he comes here, it should be taken up. 

SHRI MOTURU HANUMANTHA RAO: 
The Home Minister has come, let him make 
the statement. 
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THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI V. 
NARAYANASAMY): The statement is com-
ing. Whoever is the Minister making it, there 
is no problem. Now, Mr. Ram Jethmalani 
please. 

SHORT DURATION DISCUSSION 

Recent Verdict of the Swiss Supreme 
Court relating to Bofors—Contd. 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI 
(Karnataka) : Mr. Vice-Chairman, Sir, pardon 
me for expressing a personal preference. I 
wish you were always in the Chair when I am 
speaking. It was, I think, on the 29th of July 
that I commenced my speech. You will recall. 
Sir, that I was referring to the speech made on 
the floor of Parliament by the then Prime 
Minister who invited the Opposition to 
participate in the task of discovery of the 
identity of the culprits in the Bofors deal. He 
said that this was a national effort and he 
expressly invited the Opposition to help him 
in discovering the real culprits. 

Now that that day is drawing near, I do wish 
to ask.—I wish to ask because I have 
reasonable apprehensions to the contrary—
will the wishes of the late Prime Minister be 
fulfilled in this respect ? Are you serious 
about it ? If you are serious about it, will you, 
at least, give us a few assurances which I wish 
to ask for ? Here, I want to share with you the 
few apprehensions which I genuinely and 
honestly entertain. 

The first apprehension which arises in my 
mind has its origin in the famous television 
interview of the hon. Minister of State for 
Law. I am not talking of the portion of the 
interview which he has denied. I am talking of 
the version which the Doordarshan has 
published and which, at least, he himself has 
accepted as true. On page 6 of the script 
which we now have, the hon. Minister of 
State has said that the Bofors case was a false 
case, that it was a false prosecution instituted 
by the V. P. Singh Government. He further 
said that his Government could always 
withdraw that investigation, but they were not 
doing it out of regard for some public opinion 
in that respect 

Sir, I would like to ask, how can the 
Opposition have confidence in any 
investigation being carried on by the 
Government where one of the Ministers of the 
Government, a responsible one at that has 
already decided that this is a false 
investigation instituted by the last Prime 
Minister, last but one Prime Minister, Mr. V. 
P. 

Singh? It is a most rediculous suggestion to 
make. It is a suggestion which must be dis-
missed with contempt because when we see 
the names that are on everybody's lips, which 
have been there on our lips for a very, very 
long time, surely, Mr. V. P. Singh had no 
motives to institute a false prosecution against 
those people. Sir, we would like to have an 
assurance now that the Minister will not 
interfere with that investigation because he 
says that the investigation is false and they are 
in a position to withdraw it. I want an 
assurance that the Government accepts the 
view that no Minister, however highly placed 
he may be, can ever interfere with the criminal 
investigation into a cognisable offence. One of 
the greatest Judges in England, Lord Denning, 
has said thai no Minister of the Crown can 
tell a police constable how to conduct an 
investigation, to stop an investigation or to 
interfere with the investigative process. 

Sir, I heard the impassioned speeches that 
day. I understand the loyalty of the Members 
of this House to the late Prime Minister. I 
understand the love and affection they bear 
for him but if you want to stop this 
investigation, do it by methods which are 
legal and constitutional. I am nobody to 
advise you, but if you want gratuitous advice 
on how to stop this investigation, take a 
political decision, take a political decision of 
the kind which was taken in America. 

President Ford became the President of the 
United States after Nixon went out of office. 
It was an open deal that if Ford became the 
President, he would first proceed to pardon 
Nixon and other accused who were all 
involved in the Watergate investigation. It is 
a constitutional method of stopping an 
investigation, but investigations cannot be 
stopped ... 

THE MINISTER OF STATE IN THE 
MINISTRY OF LAW, JUSTICE AND 
COMPANY AFFAIRS (SHRI H. R. BHAR-
DWAJ) : Mr. Vice-Chairman, I would like to 
say a few things. He has mentioned my name 
and I am entitled to clarify my position. 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: I have no dif-
ficulty. If you want to interrupt me, you are 
welcome. 

SHRI H. R. BHARDWAJ: I will have to 
because he is totally misleading the House. 

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: If you want 
to interrupt now, get up. 


